
United Nations 

GENERAL 
ASSEMBLY 
THIRTY -SECOND SESSION 

Official Records* 

THIRD COMMITTEE 
41st meeting 

held on 
Wednesday, 9 November 1977 

at 10.30 a.m. 
New York 

SUMMARY RECORD OF THE 41st MEETING 

Chairman: Mr. PEDERSEN (Denmark) 

later: Mrs. MAIR (Jamaica) 

CONTENTS 

AGENDA ITEM 77: CRIME PREVENTION AND CONTROL (continued) 

AG1'NDA ITEM 80: TORTURE AND OTHER CRUEL, INHUMAN OR DEGRADING TREATMENT OR PUNISHMENT 
(continued) 

* Tlus record 1s subject to correction. Correctwns should be mcorporated m a copy of 
the record and should be sent withm one week of the date of publication to the Ch1ef, 
Offic1al Records Ed1tmg Section, room A-3550. 

Corrections will be 1ssued shortly after the end of the session, in a separate fasc1cle for 
each Comm1ttee. 

77-57909 

Distr. GENERAL 
A/C.3/32/SR.4l 
14 November 1977 
ENGLISH 
ORIGINAL: FRENCH 

I . .. 



A/C.3/32/SR.4l 
English 
Par,e 2 

The meeting was called to order at 10.50 a.m. 

AGENDA ITEM 77: CRH1E PREVENTION AND CONTROL (continued) (A/32/3, chap. VI, 
sect. A, A/32/163, A/32/199; E/CN.5/536; A/C.3/32/5 and Corr.l; A/C.3/32/L.l8, 
1.19, 1.20, 1.21, 1.22 and 1.24) 

l. l,Jr. OZADOVSKY (Ukrainian Soviet Socialist Republic) , introducing draft 
resolution A/C.3/32/L.l9 on behalf of the sponsors, said that the draft 
resolution was mainly procedural, its principal aim being to improve United nations 
action in the field of crime prevention and control. Its provisions were clear and 
self-explanatory. The preamble noted that crime hampered the economic, social and 
cultural development of peoples and threatened the enjoyment of fundamental rights, 
reaffirmed the right of each State to formulate its own policies in the field of 
crime prevention and control, and noted the importance of co-operation among Member 
States and the need to co-ordinate the action of United Nations bodies in that 
field. 

2. Reading out the operative part of the draft resolution, he pointed out that 
paragraphs l and 2 sought to ensure the participation of the competent 
intergovernmental organs, in particular the Committee on Crime Prevention and 
Control, the Commission for Social Development and the tconomic and Social Council 
in the preparation of the United Nations Congresses on the Prevention of Crime and 
the Treatment of Offenders. 

3. The sponsors of the draft resolution had held consultations with many 
delegations and with representatives of the regional groups and they had taken into 
account all the suggestions that had been made. They were also ready to consider 
the amendments which had been proposed. He expressed the hope that the draft 
resolution would be adopted by consensus. 

4. Mrs. PAPAEFSTATHIOU (Greece) said that the twentieth century was marked by a 
number of evils - alcoholism, drug abuse and violence, to mention only a few
which had led to an increase in crime. Rapid industrialization and the alienation 
of individuals and groups had been generally recognized as being among the main 
causes of thctt situation. Horeover, as a result of the speed of communications, 
certain manifestations of crime (smuggling, drug trafficking, the theft of 1vorks of 
art, currency speculation) now -vrent beyond national frontiers. Although crime 
assumed different forms in different countries, it should be possible to devise an 
integrated approach to the problem. 

5. International co-operation in the field of the prevention of crime and the 
treatment of offenders had been a concern of the United IJations since 1946. The 
First United Nations Congress on the Prevention of Crime and the Treatment of 
Offenders had been held in Geneva in 1955. Since that time, one of the major 
concerns of the United nations had been to clarify the relationship between crime 
and socio--economic development. f1oreover, in the field of the administration of 
justice, it had adopted a number of instruments (the Universal Declaration of Human 
Rights, the International Covenant on Civil and ~olitical Righ~s, the Standard 
Minimum Rules for the Treatment of Prisoners, etc.) the provisions of which were now 
included in the legislation of a large number of countries. The United Nations also 
played an important role in the provision of technical assistance and the 
elaboration of policies. 

/ ... 



A/C.3/32/SR.41 
English 
Page 3 

(Hrs. Papaefstathiou, Greece) 

6. The reports before the Committee (A/32/199 and E/CN.5/536) showed that there 
was a real escalation of crime in the world, that the problem affected all 
countries, and that the traditional means used to combat it were proving inadequate. 
Thus, there was a need, clearly emphasized in draft resolution B in document 
A/32/163, to strengthen international co~operation in that field in order to devise 
joint solutions. In that connexion, she was gratified to note that the Committee 
on Crime Prevention and Control had been able to prepare a draft code of conduct 
aimed at preventing corruption, the abuse of force or authority, violence and 
brutality among la1r enforcement officials. 

1. Although Greece was not seriously affected by the problem of crime, it 
nevertheless believed that it was essential to promote exchanges of information in 
that field, under the auspices of the United Nations. It was important to make a 
concerted attack on the root causes of crime, particularly since one of the main 
goals of the Second United Nations Development Decade was the improvement of the 
quality of life. 

8. l1r. SMIRIJOV (Union of Soviet Socialist Republics) reiterated his country's 
position of principle, w·hich had already been stated in detail at the Fifth United 
Nations Congress on the Prevention of Crime and the Treatment of Offenders, on the 
role which the United Nations should play in that field: it should develop 
co-operation among Hember States and strengthen the activities of organs concerned 
with crime prevention. In so doing, the United ITations should be guided by the 
provisions of the Charter, in particular the principle of non-interference in the 
internal affairs of States. The frequently adduced theory that urbanization and 
industrial development were the root causes of crime had no scientific foundation. 
The causes of crime lay in social and economic conditions and in the division of 
society into classes. Crime had different characteristics in different countries 
and the methods adopted to eradicate it therefore also varied from one country to 
another. The elaboration and application of those methods was the prerogative of 
States. 

9. His delegation could not accept the thesis in the report of the Secretary
General (A/32/199) that as societies changed, expanded and developed, crime assumed 
new dimensions and new forms. That thesis led to erroneous conclusions regarding 
the inevitable nature of crime. l-1oreover, in vie1v of the method adopted in the 
report, it lias not possible to draw Hell~founded conclusions on which appropriate 
proposals could have been based. In paragraph 36, for example, the attempt made to 
Vle\V crime in a socio-economic context \Vas too timid. 

10. In the Soviet Union, the Great October Revolution had eliminated the 
fundamental causes of crime by abolishing the former class struct~re. Drug abuse, 
counterfeiting, and professional crime ~Vere unknown. As for gangsters, they were 
known to the Soviet people only through films and detective stories from the Hestern 
countries. The healthy atmosphere which prevailed in socialist society had 
contributed to the elimination of the anti-social phenomenon of crime. Crime 
control was based on the reinforcement of socialist law and order. The nevr 
Constitution emphasized that all State organs, all collective organizations and all 

I ... 



A/C.3/32/SR.41 
English 
Page 4 

(Mr. Smirnov, USSR) 

citizens were bound to respect the law. Moreover, the Soviet Union had launched a 
genuine social crime prevention prograiT~e as part of the national economic and 
social development effort. 

11. His delee;ation agreed to the preamble to draft resolution B in document 
A/32/163, but it had certain coiT~ents to make regarding the operative part. For 
example, chapter I of the report of the Fifth Congress contained a series of 
recommendations which fell within the competence of the Committee on Crime 
Prevention and Control, the Commission for Social Development, the Commission on 
Narcotic Drugs and the Commission on Human Rights. It 1-ras therefore up to those 
organs to consider the recommendations and to submit them to the General Assembly. 
Accordingly, the provision that the Secretary-General should transmit to the 
Economic and Social Council and its functional commissions, as well as to all other 
United Nations organs and organizations concerned, those conclusions of the Fifth 
Congress that fell within their spheres of competence was sufficient. r,1oreover, 
the Commission for Social Development had barely considered the tv:o draft 
resolutions in document A/32/163. He suggested that a small working group composed 
of interested delegations should be established to draft the final text, taking 
into account the proposed amendments (A/C.3/32/L.l8 and A/C.3/32/L.20). The group 
could also consider the draft resolutions submitted by various delegations. 

12. He observed that since the United Nations had begun to deal vrith the problem 
of crime prevention and control, on the basis of General Assembly resolution 
415 (V), the composition of the Organization had changed substantially but its 
practices had changed very little. In particular, intergovernmental organizations 
did not participate in the preparation of congresses on crime prevention organized 
under the auspices of the United Nations. It was also surprising that the national 
liberation movements were not invited to participate in the Sixth United Nations 
Congress on the Prevention of Crime and the Treatment of Offenders. Referring to 
document A/CONF.87/INF.l, he observed that no decision had been taken regarding the 
date and venue of that Congress either by the Gc~eral Assembly or by other United 
Nations organs. Moreover, the agenda had been established in advance, whereas that 
question still had to be considered. Lastly, the rules of procedure vere very 
different from those of other similar meetings organized under United Nations 
auspices and it was no mere chance that the Fifth Congress he'd recommended the 
revision of the rules of procedure of the Congresses with a view to bringing them 
into line vrith the practice follovred in the United Nations. ~1oreover, the members 
of the Committee on Crime Prevention and Control were appointed by tbe Economic and 
Social Council on the recommendation of the Secretary-General, whereas they should 
be elected on the principle of equitable geographical distr bution. In view of 
those comments, his delegation supported draft resohltion J1 C. 3/32/L .19. 

13. The Soviet delegation was not opposed t0 the substance of draft resolution 
A/C.3/32/L.21, but felt that some amend::1en"ts should be made to the text in ordE.'r to 

/ ... 



A/C.3/32/SR.41 
English 
Page 5 

(!vir. Smirnov, USSR) 

improve the wording. The fifth preambular paragraph, which had no direct bearing 
on the substance of the question, should be deleted. Paragraph 1, which was not 
sufficiently specific, could be worded as follows: "Recalls that, in accordance 
with General Assembly resolution 2857 (XXVI) and Economic and Social Council 
resolutions 1574 (L), 1745 (LIV) and 1930 (LVIII), the main objective ... 11

• 

Operative paragraph 4 should be addressed to the Committee on Crime Prevention and 
Control rather than to the Sixth United Nations Congress on the Prevention of Crime 
and the Treatment of Offenders. It could be worded as follows: "Proposes that the 
Committee on Crime Prevention and Control should discuss, .•• ". Lastly, it was too 
early, at the present stage, to establish the priority to be assigned to the 
question of capital punishment. He therefore suggested that, in operative 
paragraph 5, the words \'with high priority" should be replaced by the words 11with 
suitable priority11

• He was ready to take part in consultations to consider the 
draft resolution further, so that it could be adopted without a vote. 

14. Mr. DAGRA (Niger) said that, as was rightly pointed out in the Secretary
General's report (A/32/199), as societies changed and developed, crime assumed new 
dimensions and new forms. It was therefore only natural that the international 
community should be increasingly concerned with means of controlling crime. 
vfuatever forms it took, and wherever it appeared, crime reflected a crisis in 
society. 

15. Each State had the right, as was stated in document A/32/199, to formulate and 
implement, in accordance with its mm conditions and national requirements, the 
~olicies and measures necessary to prevent crime. Niger, being concerned about its 
development, had opted for a policy of both prevention and cure for the problem. 
The Government had set up a Re-education Centre for minors which gave them 
vocational training and taught them about national realities, in order to heal the 
scars of the cultural aggression committed against the developing countries. His 
Government's choice reflected its firm determination to eradicate from 
post~colonial society such problems as illiteracy, unemployment, exodus from rural 
areas, etc., which led to a decline in morals and encouraged vay-vrard behaviour and 
anti-social acts. 

16. Crime had nmr assumed -vrorld-wide dimensions because of the perme.'J_bi-' ~I-:J' of 
frontiers, which necessitated real international co-operation. His ~~n 1ll <~I_·y 1vo .1i 'l 
welcome any initiatives, particularly from the United Nations, whose role ill th[,t 
field was irreplaceable. 

17. nr. McGREGOR (Canada) said that consideration of the iten, 1 cr1r~1e ,,reventi.Jn 
and control involved discussion not only of the phenomenon c ,, rime buv of means to 
prevent crime, of law enforcement, of treatmeut of 0ffender~c_ c1nd of j'Jdicial 
procedures. 'rhe forms and extent of criminal activit·r '"'r -;::;articulc-!.·_· to eaclJ 
society. Therefore variations in methods of crime r -vcYtt:i._cn sl1ould be expecte..:L 
Even so, the goal should be justice and respect for t ,-,, humc_n :-ights of c;ll. 

18. Punishment alone had proved ineffective to eliL1inate crime. Its social 
origins must also be attacked. Crime >vas a syTYlptul(c of society's proLle':•c, ., sT~C! 1 s 

I ... 



A/C.3/32/SR.41 
English 
Page 6 

(Mr. McGregor, Canada) 

economic and social inequality. Despair over lack of opportunity could well be at 
the root of juvenile delinquency, in vrhich case the solution would be to provide 
jobs and equal opportunities for all. A new international economic order would 
perhaps not be sufficient to ensure a crimeless society, but it was certainly an 
essential step towards that goal. It was essential to co-operate at the 
international level to defeat international crime, but it vras also necessary to 
promote and preserve justice. 

19. Every Government had an obligation to ensure that people held in detention vrere 
not subjected to cruel, inhuman or de grad in[!; treatment. Hmv-ever mistreatment, 
physical and psychological torture were permitted to occur as a deliberate policy of 
some Governments. When the question of torture was discussed in terms of 
principles, no one made any effort to defend it, but there vere some 1-rho ar8;Ued that 
the international community's concern about the practice of torture was an 
infringement of their national sovereignty. His delegation believed, to the 
contrary, that the international community had an obligation to be concerned about 
torture wherever it occurred, and to do everything possible to eliminate the 
practice. It therefore welcomed the three draft resolutions submitted to the 
Committee on the subject (A/C.3/32/1.13, 1.14 and 1.15). Ho1v-ever it must be 
realized that those resolutions would not put an end to the practice of torture. 
It was essential that the international community remained vi~ilant and continued 
to consider more and better ways of discoura[Sing the use of torture. 

20. Mr. NTAKIBIRORA (Burundi) said that his Government shared the alarm of the 
international community at the rise in crime. AlthoufSh Burundi 1;ras a very poor 
country, with problems of illiteracy, inadequate hygiene and widespread 
underemployment, crime vas virtually non-existent in traditional society, vhere the 
social prop of parental authority remained firm. In the tovms, however, crime vas 
rife. His Government had taken strong measures to reduce the factors contributing 
to crime. For example, it had laid dovn strict regulations governing liquor sales, 
created community work camps for young people to restore contact vith the 
traditional social environment and, in order to preserve ancestral Values, it 
controlled cultural activities. 

21. With regard to economic crimes, Burundi sup~orted the recommendation made by 
the Fifth United Nations Congress on the Prevention of Crime and the Treatment of 
Offenders in paragraph 8 of its report (A/COJ\TF. 56/10). Economic criminality vould 
only be a minor problem if transnational corporations or poverful trading partners, 
which seemed immune from the law, were not also involved. 

22. Since the newly independent and developing countries could not successfully 
attack the problem of crime, Burundi fully supported the proposal concerning the 
establishment of a United Nations institute for crime prevention and control to 
service countries of Africa south of the Sahara. The institute vould provide an 
opportunity for useful exchanges of information and experience vith developed 
countries. However, the lack of funds to help the regional institutes responsible 
for studyingways and means of reducing crime vas disturbing. illTDP should give 
priority assistance to the Governments of African countries south of the Sahara in 
the event that the institute vas established. In any case, his Government vrished 
to make the best possible use of the scarce resources at its disposal. 

/ ... 



A/C.3/32/SR.4l 
English 
Page 7 

(Mr. Ntakibirora, Burundi) 

23. Co-operation with the Western countries would also be helpful for the 
elaboration of an international code of conduct for international trading partners, 
which would spare the developing countries much trouble and annoyance. 

24. Among the measures enumerated in document E/CN.5/536, social control was the 
one best suited to the situation confronting Burundi. In the matter of the 
administration of justice, Burundi was guided by the general principles laid down 
in most of the international instruments adopted by the United Nations, including 
the Standard Minimum Rules for the Treatment of Prisoners. In the few cases of 
violation of those rules that had occurred, it had meted out severe punishment. 
Also his Government had just established a Department of Administration and 
Management of Prison Hork, and held regular seminars for judges and prison 
governors. 

25. His delegation welcomed the elaboration by the Committee on Crime Prevention 
and Control of the draft code of conduct for law enforcement officials, in 
accordance with General Assembly resolution 3453 (XXX). It was in favour of the 
draft resolution recommending the adoption of that code, which appeared in 
document E/CN.5/536, and of all the other draft resolutions and relevant amendments 
before the Committee. 

26. He joined previous speakers in requesting that substantial assistance should 
be provided for the United Nations Trust Fund for Social Defence and for regional 
and interregional institutes for crime control. 

27. The CHAIRIMill announced that Paraguay had joined the sponsors of draft 
resolution A/C.3/32/L.l8. 

28. Mr. YEPES ENRIQUEZ (Ecuador) expressed his appreciation of the report by the 
Secretary-General (A/32/199). The volume, importance and usefulness of the 
information collected had enabled a statistical survey to be made of the world 
crime situation which would serve as a basis of comparison for subsequent studies. 
Most important of all, the information would provide an opportunity for analysis 
of the underlying causes of crime so that they could be understood and remedied. 

29. Ecuador endorsed the part of the report concerning Latin America, but felt 
that the conceptual framework could be improved and, in particular, that account 
should be taken of regional replies in order to improve the situation described. 
In that connexion, it would be very useful to convene a regional preparatory 
meeting in Latin America before the Sixth United Nations Congress on the Prevention 
of Crime and Treatment of Offenders was held at Sydney in 1980. Ecuador therefore 
supported amendment A/C. 3/32/L .18 to draft resolution B of the Economic and Socio,l 
Council (A/32/163). It also wished to place on record its extreme satisfaction 
over the work of the Latin American Institute for the Prevention of Crime and the 
Treatment of Offenders which, although only recently established, had held 
four specialized international meetings and provided technical assistance to 
various countries in the region. 

30. Ecuador also supported amendment A/C.3/32/L.20 to draft resolution B of the 

I . .. 



A/C.3/32/SR.4l 
English 
Page 8 

(l·Ir. Yepes Enriquez, Ecuador) 

Economic and Social Council. It was, however, surprised that while mention was 
made of the Declaration on the Protection of All Persons from Being Subjected to 
Torture and Other Cruel, Inhuman or Degrading Treatment or Punishment, there was 
no reference to the source of that Declaration, which 1vas the fifth United Nations 
Congress on the Prevention of Crime and the Treatment of Offenders. 

31. Ecuador had participated reGularly in United Nations activities designed to 
eliminate capital punishment, which Ecuador had abolished in 1906, since the 
practice was a denial of the fundamental right to life, of all persons without 
which the other fundamental rights which the international community claimed to 
uphold and apply had no meaning. Besides, it had been amply demonstrated that the 
death penalty had no deterrent value but, on the contrary, made the criminal far 
more dangerous. On~ could discourse indefinitely on the disadvantages and useless 
cruelty of the death penalty and point out, for example, that modern criminologists 
considered that crime should be dealt -vrith not by punishment but by a syster,1 of 
rehabilitation and reintegration of the offender in society. He would merely 
remark that in paragraph 177 (e) of its report (A/CONF.56/10) the fifth United 
Nations Congress on the Prevention of Crime and the Treatment of Offenders had 
advocated sanctions that were less aggressive in their application. All those 
considerations had led his delegation to join the sponsors of draft resolution 
A/C.3/32/L.2l which, it hoped, would receive wide support for basically 
humanitarian reasons. 

32. Mrs. Hair (Jamaica) took the Chair. 

33. l1r. CANTAVE (Haiti) said that criminality was currently reaching crisis 
proportions. Crime was becoming more frequent, more mobile and less easy to 
control, more scientific and less remediable, more subtle and less secret. 
Crilliinals were tougher, more sophisticated, better educated; violence characterized 
the Host diverse types of crime. Given that multiplicity of aspects of crime, 
there could be no universal solution. lloreover, the problems of delinquency varied 
depending on the age of the individual and the environment. Regardless of the 
legal provisions desic;ned to curb criminal activity, the rate of crime -vras 
increasing and, to make the problem more complex, everyone had -vrithin himself what 
might be called 11 the seed of crime": anyone could become a criminal, because of 
jealousy or ambition, for example. He felt, in addition, that a way must be 
found to put an end to c;ames of chance, usury and prostitution, lvhich were the 
pillars of organized crime, as also illicit traffic in drugs. 

34. The question of criminality should be studied in depth from an objective 
vie-vrpoint. The problem of identification - which Has very important in the field 
of criminology because proceedings could not be instituted lvithout sure knovrledge 
of the identity of the accused - had been solved only at the end of the past 
century, thanl'-s to the stubborn efforts of Alphonse Bertillon and Galton; similarly, 
it -v10uld take years of patient effort to reach the point ~Vhere a method of crime 
prevention could be recollmended in certain countries. 

35. To achieve success in that field, it ~Vould be necessary to solve the major 
social problems with the co-operation of the entire cowmunity. To that end, 

/ ... 



A/C.3/32/SR.41 
English 
Page 9 

(Hr. Cantave, Haiti) 

rehabilitation centres to which first offenders would be sent must be established. 
If they did not subsequently correct their ways, the courts would apply the 
provisions of the la-vr of the country and, while respecting the fundamental 
principles of the Universal Declaration of Human Rights and of criminal justice, 
could impose severe penalties on recidivists who constituted a danger to society. 
The purpose of rehabilitation measures applied by the judicial authorities should 
be to prevent young people from going astray and becoming delinquent. Therefore, 
civic and moral education programmes in the schools should be expanded. 
Preventative educational measures should be preferred to punitive ones. To 
strengthen material security, raise the cultural level and identify those in need 
of help so as to educate them and~give them a sense of their human dignity should 
constitute a programme that could command the enthusiastic support of all who 
sought a better world. 

36. His delegation welcomed the report of the Cowmittee on Crime Prevention and 
Control (A/32/199) and whole-heartedly endorsed the ideas set forth in draft 
resolution B contained in document A/32/163, l·rhich it hoped would receive the 
support of all Hembers so that the Secretary-General would be able to ta};:e the 
desired measures to prepare the Sixth United Nations Congress on the Prevention 
of Crime and the Treatment of Offenders. 

37. Hr. FAURIS (France) praised the quality of the documents before the Committee, 
for they reflected at the international level concerns which were also felt in 
France at the national level: first and foremost, the need for scientific 
exactitude, making possible a better knowledge of the realities of crime, l·rith a 
vie-vr to the adoption of appropriate policies. France sought an objective approach 
to criminality which -vrould make it possible, for example, to determine trends, to 
define types and categories, to establish the cost of criminality and to make 
studies on aggravating factors. He wished to stress the value of international 
exchanges of technical };:nowledge and experience and he noted the unique role -vrhich 
the United Nations could play in that connexion. 

38. Secondly, the international community's interest in ways and means of crime 
prevention was shared by the French Government, I>Thich -vras seeking a better system 
of social prevention of the phenomena of violence and delinquency. He observed 
in that connexion that the whole organization of society should be preventive, 
including the family, the school, employment, public services or legal rules. In 
order to avoid excessive compartmentalization and inadequate co-ordination in the 
matter of crime prevention, it would be necessary to recognize the mutual 
interdependence of the various administrations which -vrere engaged in social action, 
including those in the fields of e~ployment, justice, police, health, social 
affairs, youth and sports, education, culture, environment and public services and 
guide their activities in the light of an analysis of social reality, at both the 
national and local levels. Thus it was planned to establish in France a national 
committee for the general prevention of criminality - including representatives of 
the parliamentary assemblies, local communities, professions, trade unions and 
representative associations, as well as central administrations - which -vrould be 
entrusted -vrith studying and proposing measures to be taken to ensure the better 
management, in the short term, of the protection of the national community and, in 
the longer term, to reduce the factors which promoted the emergence and development 
of delinquency. At the local level, it was intended to establish decentralized 

I ... 



A/C.3/32/SR.41 
English 
Pat;e 10 

(dr. Fa uris, France) 

bodies entrusted with preventine the phenomena of violence, studying their 
manifestations and proposing remedies in the light of local conditions. Finally, 
it was planned to broaden the role of the judicial institutions, notably the 
tribunaux d'instance (cantonal courts), which were closest to the persons concerned. 
To them vould be entrusted, in addition to their jurisdictional functions, a 
broader task of conciliation or even arbitration, of a non-binding character, 
to which citizens could freely have recourse. 

39. \Ji th reference to the report of the Committee on Crime Prevention and Control 
on its fourth session (E/CN.5/536), France would participate in the work of the 
Sixth United Nations Congress on the Prevention of Crime and the Treatment of 
Offenders (chap. IV). It had no objection in principle to the code of conduct for 
lmv enforcement officials (chap. V), all of the provisions of which were already 
embodied in France's internal laws and regulations. With regard to the problem 
of safeguarding human rights in the administration of justice (chap. VI), he said 
that French legislation was entirely in conformity with the international texts 
on the matter. In that connexion, he observed that France attached the greatest 
importance to the Declaration on the Protection of All Persons from being Subjected 
to Torture and Other Cruel, Inhuman or Degrading Treatment or Punishment. 

40. His delegation could not at that stage express an opinion on draft resolution 
A/C.3/32/L.l9, which dealt with a very technical matter and called for a thorough 
examination. In any case, General Assembly resolution 415 (V) should continue to 
be the basic text. 

41. Mrs. PIZZANELLI (Uruguay) said that her country attached the greatest 
importance to the question under consideration, for rampant criminality threatened 
social stability, progress and economic development. In Uruguay delinquency was 
now declining and was confined primarily to adult males. 

42. In the study of crime prevention, factors such as economic planning and social 
planning, including urbanization, were of particular importance, for increasing 
crime was linked to industrialization and urbanization, as well as to mass 
migration from rural areas towards industrialized urban centres. There was no 
universal solution to that problem. However, crime in its most dangerous forms 
knew no frontiers, and international co-operation -vms therefore imperative. 

43. She drew attention to the successful work of the United Nations Institute for 
the Prevention of Crime and the Treatment of Offenders in Latin America established 
in 19'75 in conformity -vrith resolutions 731 F (XXVIII) and 1548 (L) of the Economic 
and Social Council, which gave effect to a long-cherished aspiration of the 
countries of the region to set up a common fund of data derived from experience. 
That Institute organized training programmes for planners, administrators, 
specialized technical personnel and persons responsible for formulating policies 
for the prevention of crime and the treatment of offenders, including theoretical 
and practical studies and courses, seminars and symposia, on such subjects as the 
planning of social defence in the context of national development, human rights in 
the administration of justice, penal practices and training of personnel. It 
promoted exchanges of techniques, kno-vrledge and experience and had initiated 

I . .. 



A/C.3/32/SR.41 
English 
Page 11 

(Hrs. Pizzanelli, Uruguay) 

systematic, multidisciplinary and specific surveys on the trends of criminality in 
the region and related factors. It encouraged Governments to adopt and apply the 
norms, guidelines and methods recommended by the United Nations, contributed to the 
establishment, adaptation and implementation of crime prevention and criminal 
justice policies and programmes in the region, in accordance with an international 
plan of action and other United Nations recommendations and, lastly, extended 
technical assistance to Governments. 

44. Uruguay, which attached particular importance to all efforts to abolish the 
death penalty in order to guarantee fully the right to life proclaimed in article 3 
in the Universal Declaration of Human Rights, would vote in favour of draft 
resolution A/C.3/32/L.21. The provisions of paragraph 4 in particular, requesting 
the Sixth United Nations Congress on the Prevention of Crime and the Treatment of 
Offenders to discuss, under the appropriate item on its agenda, the various aspects 
of the use of capital punishment and the possible restriction thereof, including 
a more generous application of rules relating to pardon, corrwutation or reprieve, 
and to report thereon, with recommendations, to the General Assembly at its thirty
fifth session, were very useful. Uruguay had abolished the death penalty 70 years 
earlier and the prohibition against that penalty had been included in all the 
constitutional texts adopted since then (article 26 of the present Constitution) 
in order to protect the right to life vmich was the precondition for the enjoyment 
of all other fundamental rights. 

45. Uruguay would likewise support the draft resolutions submitted by the Economic 
and Social Council (A/32/163). It was one of the sponsors of draft resolution 
A/C.3/32/L.l9 and the amendment in document A/C.3/32/L.l8 to draft resolution B 
(A/32/163) lvhich stressed the importance of regional meetings of experts and 
representatives of Governments that facilitated preliminary exchanges of 
information and experience and the co-ordination of preparations for the Sixth 
Congress. 

46. l1r. SCHHEITZER (Chile) said that the United Nations had been deeply concerned 
about the problem of crime for many years. The Secretary-General's report on that 
question (A/32/199), and the observations in the report of the Committee on Crime 
Prevention and Control (E/CN.5/536) containing measures aimed at preventing 
crime rather than punishing criminals and at elaborating minimum rules for the 
treatment of prisoners to protect them against abuses, painted a very clear picture 
of the question under consideration. The need to devote a great deal of attention 
to crime prevention measures, which by their very nature also applied to the 
treatment of offenders, had long been recognized. 

47. The Secretary-General's report reviewed the difficulties encountered in 
undertaking a serious and scientific study of the causes of crime (A/32/199, 
paras. 13 and 14). It vras indispensable, however, to collect data which faithfully 
reflected the extent of crime, particularly in the case of juvenile delinquency. 
Chile for its part had since 1928 accorded special treatment to minors and had even 
felt it advisable to replace the expression "juvenile delinquency" by the expression 
11minors in an irregular situation11

• Offences committed by minors frequently were 
omitted from crime statistics, with the result that the number of juvenile 
delinquents might appear to be less than it actually was. Furthermore, the 
Secretary-General' report stressed a number of contemporary phenomena linked to 
criminality - drug abuse, political crime and terrorism, transnational crime of a 
fraudulent kind such as tax evasion - for vrhich realistic solutions must be found. 

/ ... 



A/C.3/32/SR.41 
En[';lish 
Page 12 

(~!r. Schi<Jeitzer, ChiJe) 

48. It would be uto-rian to think that criminality could be totally eliminated once 
qnd for all. It was possible, on the other hand, to remedy an actual situation by 
adopting measures placing more emphasis on the prevent::tive than on the remedial or 
r;unitive aspect, t3l!Ch as those I<Jhich were outlined in paragraph 50 of the Secretary
General's report. In that context it was clear that economic and social factors 
uere not the only ones that had to be considered. Criminologists themselves agreed 
that many othc:.r· factors were involved in criminality. Furthermore, the criminal 
codes of differe:.·1t countries must be revised by eliminating infractions -vrhich were 
not serious enough La be regarded as criminal offences and by adopting less punitive 
cateGories of 0anctions. Jn that connexion, the Chilean Institute of Criminal 
Sci<.::>nces had or~anized in 1973 a meeting of professors of criminal la~V froTI the 
colJntries .Jf Latin America ~Vith a vie1: to the prepetration of a common criminal code 
for the cmmtries of the re,;ion, vhich vould provide a standard for undertaking 
that tyre of reform in the national legislations of the various countries. It had 
been deemed useful to consider penalties other than the traditional ones, such as 
house arrest, obligatory -vreel,-end community vrork a.nd measures of an economic nature 
-vrhich appeared to be the most effective in the majority of cases. Apart from 
questions of substance, procedural provisions must also be revised so as to 
guarantee the s~Vift administration of justice and to ensure the maximum number of 
cuarantees and remedies for persons convicted. Chile for its part ~Vas workine in 
that direction ancl a project establishing modalities of that ldnd was currently 
under consideration. 

49. At the international level, he felt that efforts should be focused m~ S}Jecific 
points so as to maxjmize the benefit of international exchanges, and in that 
connexion he drev the Corunittee's attention to paragraph 107 of the Secretary
General's report (A/32/199). 

50. Finally, Chile vhole-heartedly endorsed the general conclusions drawn by the 
Secretary-General in paragra-ph 7 of his report and supported the draft resolutions 
submitted on that question, although it had reservations rep,arding certain legal and 
scientific aspects of those drafts. 

51. TJrs. SATO (Japan) said that the United Nations had an important role to play in 
the field of' criminality, which l·ras a matter nf serious concern to many countries, 
by setting international standards and tar~ets, by facilitating the exchan8e of 
information and eXTJerience and by elaborating international training and research 
pro[';rammes. In that connexion, the report of the l:oll1mittee on Crime Prevention and 
Control (E/CN. 5/536) and the report of the f:\:cretary-Genera1 on Crime Prevention 
and Control (A/32/199) constituted e:, very useful contribution ano. it vras to be 
hoped that they 1vould be l\:ept Uf) to date on a continuing bas is. 

52. A great deal of attention had recently been given to the relationship betveen 
urbanization, industrialization and socio-economic develo-pment on the one hand and 
the crime rate on the other. The fact 1ms that in certain cases social chance had 
been accompanie~ by an increase in crime and in others by a decrease. The problem 
should be studied further through an exchanr:re of information at the international 
level. 

/ ... 



A/C.3/32/SR.4l 
Ene:Iish 
Par,e 13 

(r.Trs. Sato, Japan) 

53. The promotion of international pro[':rammes was an important aspect of 
international co-operation in the field of criMe prevention. In that connexion, the 
role being played by the Unitccd nations Asia and Far East Institute for the 
Prevention of Crime and the Treatment of Offenders, established in Tokyo in 1961 
under the joint operation of the United Nations and the Governrnent of Japan, should 
be mentioned. That Institute disseminated information, provided training and 
engaged in research on crime prevention and the treatment of offenders. It 
organized annual traininro courses lasting from one to three months in which 
officials or experts frorr.. the countries of Asia and the Pacific participated. 
.Japanese Government would continue its efforts to ~1ake the Institute a success 
looked forward to the continued co-operation of the countries of the region to 
end. 

Tbe 
and 
tbat 

54. The draft resolution entitled "Crime prevention and control 11 (A/C.3/32/L.l9) 
seemed to have important implications and should be given careful consideration. 
As to draft resolution A/C.3/32/L.2l, Japan shared the vi,:w that tlle number of 
offences for -vrhich the death penalty might be imposed should be restricted, so that 
it -vrould be inflicted only in extreme cases. Hovrever, it had res':rvations regarding 
the phrase "with a view to the desirability of abo1 ishing this l'unishment '' at the 
end of paragraph l. In some cases the death penalty 1ras necessary for the 
application of justice. Accordin[3ly, her delegation -vroulci abstain on the draft 
resolution if it 11ras put to a vote. 

55. ~!r. LA!'lB (Australia) said that his delep;ation joined many otl1ers in hopin,cr that 
the 1vork of the Sixth Congress on the Prevention of Crime and the Treatment of 
Offenders to be held in Sydney would be successful and Has prepared to co-operate 
1\l'ith all Heniber States to that end. Furthermore, it -vrished to reiterate the hope 
it had expressed in the Fifth Corr~~ttee in 1976 that the provisions taken to 
transfer the staff of the Centre for Social Development and Humanitarian Affairs 
from Ne~-r York and Gen va to Vienna in 1978-1979 \WUld not interfere with the 
preparaticns for the ixth Congress. 

5(). The CHfi_IRl!AIT dre r attention to document A./C. 3/32/L. 24 conta,ining the 
administrative and fi ancial implications of the ar:Jendment iL chcument A/C.3/3;?/L.l8 
to draft resolution B in docurr..ent A/32/16'3, and announced that-, the Upper Volta, had 
joined the sponsors o draft resolution A/C.J/32/L.l]. 

AGENDA ITEH 80: TORT RE .AJIJD OTHER CRUEL, IHHmTAr: C:R DEGRADING ,- p~-, r;:-l/~c~r;_ OR 
PUNI,SH!!ENT (continued) (A/32/138; A/C.3/32/L.l3, L,lL, 1.15 and. L.23) 

57. The CHAim'cAH ann unced that the Upper \'olta had joined the sponsors of draft 
resolution A/C.3/32/L.l3. 

58. !Irs. IIEATCHI (To o) s:reakinr: on behalf of the Afrj can Group and CubA., Huncary, 
India, Italy, Jamaic , Jordan, Kmrait, 'Texico, ~Tonray, Pakistan, the Philippines, 
the Socialist Republic of Viet l'JaPJ, Sw·eder::., the Syrian Arab Repub l_ic, De~ocratic 
Yemen and Yugoslavia, introduced draft resolution A/C. 3/32/L. 23 lt-nouncina, tt:e 
persistent use of tor 'Jre and other cruel, inhurr,an or des;radi11g treatment or 

/ ... 



A/C.3/32/SR.41 
English 
Page 14 

(Mrs. l~eatchi, Togo) 

punishment by the minority racist regime of South Africa, Hhich had been repeatedly 
condemned by the General Assembly, the Security Council and other United Nations 
bodies. The recent death of Stephen Biko, the violent causes of which had been 
established by medical experts, was another example of the repugnent methods used 
by the Vorster regime to perpetuate its racist domination in South Africa. The 
international community accordin~ly had the duty strongly to condemn that murder 
and to insist that the racist minority regime of South Africa should put an 
immediate end to the disgraceful practice of subjecting political prisoners and 
other opponents of apartheid to torture and other cruel, inhuman and degradinr, 
treatment or punishment. The martyrdom of Stephen Biko and all the other victims 
of the South African regime "i<Tho had fought to defend the ideals of freedom, peace 
and human solidarity, would continue to enrich the faith of the oppressed peoples of 
southern Africa and the entire world in their struggle for justice, equality and 
human dignity. The sponsors earnestly hoped that draft resolution A/C.3/32/L.23 
would be adopted 1-ri thout a vote. 

The meetin~ rose at 1.10 p.m. 


